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          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Good morning,

          3  everyone. My name is Michael McMahon, I'm the

          4  Chairman of the City Council Committee on Sanitation

          5  and Solid Waste Management, and I hereby open this

          6  hearing, on some significant pieces of legislation

          7  that we're going to consider for a vote today.

          8                 Those bills are specifically proposed

          9  Intro. 70-A, which provides increased fines for

         10  violations of the littering law, and Intro. No.

         11  146-A, which deals with changes to the illegal

         12  postings law.

         13                 On June 13th, 2002, this Committee

         14  held a hearing regarding Intro. No. 70. As a result

         15  of the public testimony, the proposed law was

         16  modified to exclude home-owners and businesses from

         17  the second and subsequent violations of the law.

         18                 The modified bill provides

         19  increasingly higher fines from multiple violators

         20  only as to the actual litterer, the idea being that

         21  if a property owner has litter blow onto his

         22  property or is in effect the victim of someone

         23  else's littering, they should not be assessed with

         24  multiple fines. The focus here is to go after the

         25  actual litterer -- I want to say perpetrator, but
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          2  that might be too strong of a word, in my mind maybe

          3  it's not too strong of a word.

          4                 On June 13th, 2002, the Committee

          5  also heard testimony regarding Intro. 128, 146 and

          6  149. All three bills amend a different section of

          7  the Illegal Posting Law. Proposed Intro. No. 146-A

          8  combines all the proposed modifications of the

          9  existing law from the three former intros into one

         10  comprehensive bill, which is now called proposed

         11  Intro. No. 146-A. It proposes the following:

         12                 It amends the current law to make it

         13  clear that each individual illegal posting

         14  constitutes a violation for which a penalty can be

         15  imposed.

         16                 It also amends the current law to

         17  expand the definitions of what constitutes an

         18  illegal posting, to add a section allowing rewards

         19  to be paid to individuals who provide information

         20  leading to the conviction of violators of this

         21  section.

         22                 Thirdly, it amends the current law to

         23  hold answering services liable for illegal postings

         24  in which only their numbers appear. They will also

         25  authorize subpoena power to the Sanitation
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          2  Commissioner to obtain telephone records to

          3  determine the identity of violators of the law, and

          4  lastly, it amends the current law to increase the

          5  fines.

          6                 For example, the minimum fine is now

          7  $50 per illegal posting. This will make the minimum

          8  fine $75 per posting. We also make it easier or make

          9  the presumption of guilt upon the person whose name

         10  appears on the poster. So, if your name is on the

         11  poster, you better be able to prove that you didn't

         12  put it up instead of having to make the Commissioner

         13  prove who did put it up.

         14                 Stated simply, illegal posters and

         15  repeat litterers beware. We will now hear from the

         16  Department of Sanitation and the public with regard

         17  to these bills.

         18                 Our first witness is, before I do

         19  that, if I could, Deputy Commissioner, I just wanted

         20  to indicate who is here on behalf of the City

         21  Council, the Members of the Committee. We have

         22  Simcha Felder, from Brooklyn; Andrew Lanza, from

         23  Staten Island; Robert Jackson, from Manhattan; and

         24  David Weprin, from Queens. And also at the table are

         25  staff, Carmen Cognetta, who is the Counsel to the

                                                            6

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  Committee; Roberta Ragone, who is the Staff Analyst

          3  for the Committee. And now our first witness is

          4  Chief Anthony Etergineoso, Special Assistant to the

          5  First Deputy Commissioner for Enforcement.

          6                 Thank you very much. Go ahead.

          7                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: Good morning,

          8  Chairman McMahon, and members of the Committee of

          9  Sanitation and Solid Waste. I am Chief Anthony

         10  Etergineoso, Special Assistant to the First Deputy

         11  Commissioner of the New York City Department of

         12  Sanitation. I am here today with Chief James Moss,

         13  Director of Enforcement, and Mike Burke, Deputy

         14  Director of Enforcement, to testify on Intro. 70-A

         15  and 146-A under consideration today.

         16                 Intro. 70-A addresses anti-littering

         17  and related provisions in Section 16-118, 120 and

         18  123, of the New York City Administrative Code. These

         19  provisions are integral components of the City's

         20  efforts to maintain street cleanliness and public

         21  safety.

         22                 Unfortunately, many individuals

         23  violate these code provisions. For example, during

         24  Fiscal Year 2002, the Department issued over 79,000

         25  summonses for violations of the above sections. This
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          2  number includes, but is not limited to, those

          3  violations issued for littering, improper disposal

          4  and loose rubbish.

          5                 The Department has an aggressive but

          6  fair enforcement policy with respect to these

          7  offenses, and we welcome the Council's proposal to

          8  increase the civil penalties for repeat violations;

          9  however, it is important to note that the imposition

         10  of the increased fines for repeat violations may be

         11  difficult to administer and pose in some cases.

         12                 Let me explain. The Department has

         13  many levels and categories of employees who are

         14  authorized to issue notices of violation for these

         15  offenses.

         16                 For example, I oversee the

         17  Department's Enforcement Division. That includes 137

         18  Sanitation police officers and supervisors, and 133

         19  sanitation enforcement agents and supervisors. While

         20  other Department employees who report through the

         21  Bureau of Cleaning and Collection and work out of

         22  the Department's 59 Sanitation Districts, also issue

         23  notices of violations for these offenses.

         24                 In addition, the Department has a

         25  permit and inspection unit and an environmental
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          2  police unit staffed with peace officers who are also

          3  authorized to issue notices of violation returnable

          4  to the Environmental Control Board, the adjudicatory

          5  body for these offenses.

          6                 Further, second and subsequent

          7  offense status can only be determined and charged

          8  when the issuing author has actual knowledge of the

          9  disposition at the hearing stage, the ECB for the

         10  previous offense.

         11                 To complicate matters further, ECB is

         12  within the purview of another agency, the New York

         13  City Department of Environmental Protection, and ECB

         14  hears quality of life cases for most City agencies.

         15  It has a tremendous volume of cases.

         16                 That makes the tracking process

         17  extremely difficult, if not impossible. And, again,

         18  in order to charge second and subsequent offense

         19  status, the status must be known at the time the

         20  notice of violation is written.

         21                 The Department of Sanitation shares

         22  the Council's concern with punishing repeat

         23  violators of quality of life offenses. At the same

         24  time, we must take into account the existing

         25  personnel and recordkeeping structures that are in
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          2  place within Sanitation and ECB, and those that are

          3  possible for the future. Given these realities and

          4  limitations, we will work to achieve the goal of

          5  Intro. 70-A, appropriate and meaningful punishment

          6  for repeat violators of these quality of life

          7  offenses.

          8                 The Department also welcomes the

          9  opportunity to discuss Intro. 146-A. This bill would

         10  enhance enforcement against postal or violators in

         11  the City of New York.

         12                 Sanitation and other City agencies,

         13  including the Department of Sanitation -- Department

         14  of Transportation, have witnessed a dramatic

         15  increase in the number of illegal postings. In

         16  particular, the unlawful posting of advertisement

         17  stickers and posters on traffic signs and signals

         18  has swelled to unmanageable numbers.

         19                 Postings on traffic control devices,

         20  such as stop signs and yield signs have obstructed

         21  the message, making the signs totally unreadable.

         22                 Illegally posted stickers are

         23  covering exist signs on highways. As a result, both

         24  vehicular and pedestrian traffic in the City are at

         25  a greater risk.
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          2                 The number of poster law violations

          3  issued in New York City is substantial.

          4                 In Fiscal Year 2001, the Department

          5  of Sanitation alone issued almost 28,000 notices of

          6  violation for postal law offenses. It issued more

          7  than 28,000 in Fiscal Year 2002, and to date has

          8  issued almost 11,000 for Fiscal Year 2003.

          9                 In recognition of this dilemma, the

         10  Department and the Council have worked on

         11  legislation that encompasses three bills the

         12  Department testified on back in June, as well as

         13  Department's comments. Intro. 146-A proposes a

         14  series of amendments to the City's existing posting

         15  law, found in Sections 10-119, 120 and 121 of the

         16  Administrative Code.

         17                 These amendments include an expanded

         18  definition of the manner in which a poster, sticker,

         19  or other printed materials can be affixed to a

         20  street furniture. It expands the definitions of

         21  street furniture and other property that may not be

         22  posted on, and increases the fines for illegal

         23  posting from a range of $50 to $75 as a minimum and

         24  $100 to $150 as a maximum for the first offense, and

         25  increases the minimum fines for the second and each
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          2  subsequent offense from $100 to $150.

          3                 Intro. 146-A also calls for adding

          4  the cost of clean-up to civil penalties imposed by

          5  the ECB. And creates a citizen reward program to

          6  assist with postal law enforcement.

          7                 The proposed amendments underscore

          8  the seriousness of this quality of life issue.

          9                 While Sanitation strongly supports

         10  the purpose of this legislation, the increased fines

         11  provision shares some of the administrative and

         12  recordkeeping problems discussed above.

         13                 Also, it is important to understand

         14  that unlike a court of law, the ECB cannot consider

         15  a range of fines for a particular fence, but must

         16  impose the agreed upon board adopted fine from

         17  within the statutory range for each violation of the

         18  same offense.

         19                 For example, currently all first

         20  offense poster law violators are charged $50 for

         21  violation, even the current statutory range is from

         22  $50 to $100.

         23                 Additionally, Intro. 146-A would

         24  amend the poster law by designating every poster as

         25  a separate violation. It is Sanitation policy, and
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          2  our interpretation of the current law to cite each

          3  poster as a separate offense. The ECB has upheld

          4  Sanitation's position on this, and we would be happy

          5  to share that case decision with you.

          6                 It supports our interpretation, based

          7  on a clear reading of the section that any illegally

          8  postered handle constitutes a separate offense,

          9  notwithstanding that more than one handle may have

         10  been posted on each public payphone booth or other

         11  designated piece of street furniture on the date of

         12  occurrence.

         13                 Finally, Intro. 146-A imposes a

         14  rebuttal presumption upon telephone answering

         15  services in instances when the poster contains no

         16  identification of the individual or business, whose

         17  poster has been unlawfully posted on public

         18  property.

         19                 Intro. 146-A also grants the

         20  Sanitation Commissioner the power of subpoena, the

         21  power to subpoena telephone company records to

         22  ascertain the identity of the individual or business

         23  responsible for the posting.

         24                 In conclusion, Intro. 70-A,

         25  increasing the fines for littering and related
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          2  offenses, and Intro. 146-A proposing a series of

          3  enhancements to the existing poster law, provide

          4  important legislative changes to some of the City's

          5  quality of life offenses.

          6                 These proposed changes in law will

          7  further Sanitation's and the City's ability to

          8  maintain clean, safe street structures and public

          9  areas, and improve the quality of life for all New

         10  Yorkers, and we welcome the opportunity to work with

         11  the Council on them.

         12                 We are now happy to answer your

         13  questions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you,

         15  Chief.

         16                 Regarding the issue of enforcement in

         17  working with the ECB, I would just like -- we have

         18  had discussions with ECB, this was brought out at

         19  our last hearing, and I would just like Counsel to

         20  comment on that so the other members understand what

         21  efforts we're undertaking in that area.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Just briefly.

         23  Counsel for the Committee, Counsel for Sanitation

         24  and Counsel for ECB met about the problem of the

         25  subsequent violation, and all have decided to work
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          2  together to try to effectuate that change.

          3                 ECB, of course, has a big role to

          4  play in it because they have all the records. We

          5  hope that it will go along much like the speeding

          6  offenses where the ticket will say that if there is

          7  a subsequent violation, you can define the

          8  additional fines, and then either when they appear

          9  or when the ticket is sent in, it will be classified

         10  as a multiple or a non-multiple, and then action

         11  will be taken.

         12                 With a speeding ticket they send the

         13  ticket back and give you a date to appear, and

         14  hopefully ECB will be able to do that some time in

         15  the future.

         16                 So, it's not going to be on the

         17  individual agent, as it's not on the individual

         18  police officer, to decide whether you get a second

         19  violation or not. That has to happen later on, and

         20  hopefully, with ECB with their computers and getting

         21  better at tracking those things, it can be done.

         22                 We know it's going to be a difficult

         23  process, but we think it's an important one, and we

         24  will stay involved and work together with Sanitation

         25  Counsel and with ECB Counsel, to see that it's
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          2  implemented.

          3                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: Well, we are at

          4  our end also working towards that end. We're

          5  currently exploring the possibility of using a

          6  hand-held computer to write summonses, of which

          7  we'll have a database that will show us immediately

          8  if the violation is a repeat violator.

          9                 So, from both ends we're working for

         10  the same cause.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: It's nice to

         12  work together.

         13                 Chief, the fine right now, we have

         14  spoken earlier, the fine for littering, which we do

         15  not raise, which has a range of $50 to $250, what is

         16  the actual fine that's imposed now by the ECB for a

         17  first offense of littering?

         18                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: First offense is

         19  $100.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay.

         21                 And with the poster law, the first

         22  offense now is $50 that's imposed?

         23                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: It's 50 minimum,

         24  100 max, and the proposed is 75 minimum.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: So this proposal
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          2  would take it up to 75 as the minimum, and that

          3  would probably be what ECB would impose, right?

          4  Would that be correct?

          5                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: I would agree with

          6  that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And just to

          8  point out to the members that there is in your

          9  package fiscal statements from the Finance Division

         10  indicating what the financial impact of these bills

         11  would be.

         12                 As you could see, the revenue

         13  enhancement from the littering bill is not that

         14  great. However, from the poster law, it gets into

         15  some serious money, and I'll just ask the Committee

         16  to consider that. It looks like a revenue

         17  enhancement in the range of two to three-million

         18  dollars. So, that's certainly the good thing as we

         19  clean up the City, we help the Mayor deal with the

         20  budget crisis as well.

         21                 Are there any questions?

         22                 Council Member Jackson.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chair.

         25                 Chief, you had indicated that in
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          2  response to the Council member's question as far as

          3  the first offense for littering, I think you said

          4  that the Environmental Control Board set the penalty

          5  at $100, even though the range is, I think is $50;

          6  is that correct?

          7                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: Well, there's a

          8  range within that particular code. The number of sub

          9  areas of that code, that some of them do have $50,

         10  some of them have $100. Littering is set at 100.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Do you know

         12  why littering is set at 100, considering the fact

         13  that the range -- I think that the range for the

         14  first offense is 50; is that correct?

         15                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: For littering, I

         16  don't have, unless legal can help me out on this, in

         17  the code, the 116 code, I believe, the 116 code

         18  deals with littering, sweep-outs, tow-outs, each one

         19  of those has a minimum/maximum.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Right.

         21                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: In this case

         22  littering is 100, whereas a sweepout is 50. As to

         23  why ECB set that standard, I don't know at this

         24  time.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.
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          2                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: I'm being told

          3  that value was set years ago. It's not something

          4  new.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And I'm

          6  asking a question of you, and if you don't really

          7  set the determination, then maybe you're not the

          8  appropriate person to answer that question. But my

          9  understanding is if I walked out of here and I threw

         10  paper on the ground and I got a ticket for

         11  littering, that ticket would say you were littering

         12  then the range for first offense is 50 -- do you

         13  know what the range is, sir? I'm sorry.

         14                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: If our enforcement

         15  issues you a summons --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Right.

         17                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: It's going to be

         18  for $100.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Right. And

         20  you say, if your enforcement is Sanitation Traffic

         21  Enforcement Agents; is that correct? That's their

         22  title; is that correct?

         23                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: They're not

         24  traffic, they're Sanitation Enforcement Agents.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Not traffic.
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          2  Sanitation Enforcement Agents.

          3                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: Yes, Sanitation

          4  Enforcement Agents.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: If Sanitation

          6  Enforcement Agents issued me a ticket, they would

          7  issue me a ticket for littering for $100?

          8                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And that's

         10  because even though the law says the minimum is 50,

         11  they're going to issue me a ticket for 100?

         12                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: As I understand

         13  it, that's the value that ECB put on that particular

         14  summons.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: But the law

         16  says 50; is that correct?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: If I could

         18  clarify, the law says a range of 50 to if I could

         19  clarify, the law says 50 200.

         20                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: The law says no

         21  less than 50, no more than 250.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: 250.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Mr. Chair,

         24  let me express to you what my concern is, and I

         25  understand, as far as, you know, penalties

                                                            20

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  increasing, and I understand as far as, you know,

          3  when someone litters more than once within a certain

          4  period of time, and I can understand that. But

          5  Council Member McMahon, I'm saying to you, as a

          6  Council member, that I'm very concerned about that

          7  in my opinion, if someone litters and they get a

          8  first ticket, to be fined $100, especially when the

          9  law says the minimum fine is $50. And I know that

         10  there's a range, but what I'm concerned about

         11  overall, is we're hitting our people over the head

         12  with a heavy fine for a first offense, and I think

         13  the emphasis should be on education first, and then

         14  enforcement, and, obviously, if I get a ticket for

         15  littering, and let's assume I get a ticket, and if I

         16  have to pay a $50 fine, and if I continue to litter

         17  and get another ticket, and they punch on the

         18  computer this is a second or third ticket, then the

         19  additional penalties that we're talking about, I

         20  would agree with that.

         21                 But for a first offense, a $100 fine,

         22  I personally believe that that's a little steep. You

         23  know, and the average New Yorker, the average person

         24  in my district, the average income of the residents

         25  in my district is under $35,000 a year. And, so,
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          2  Council Member and Chair of the Sanitation

          3  Committee, I'm expressing to you a concern that I

          4  have as a Council member concerning, you know, the

          5  Sanitation Enforcement Agents, or anyone else

          6  issuing a ticket for a first offense for $100, when

          7  the range, when the range, it doesn't say that the

          8  minimum is $100, it says the minimum is $50. And,

          9  so, I don't know why from a practical point of view,

         10  in essence, and from a practical point of view, the

         11  minimum is $100 if in fact the Sanitation

         12  Enforcement agents are going to issue a ticket for

         13  $100. So, I don't know if you can explain that, but

         14  somehow I can't go along with what's happening here

         15  as far as the first offense on that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Identify

         17  yourself for the record.

         18                 MS. CICCONE: My name is Andrea

         19  Ciccone, Director for Intergovernmental Relations at

         20  the Department of Sanitation, and I'd like to just

         21  explain to you, Council Member Jackson, very

         22  briefly, how this actually works.

         23                 The law itself designates a minimum

         24  and a maximum range, $50 to $250. That's set by

         25  legislative authority, and that gives the
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          2  Commissioner of Sanitation the actual discretion to

          3  designate a specific minimum fine, which he

          4  communicates to the Environmental Control Board.

          5                 The Environmental Control Board is an

          6  adjudicatory body, they don't have the flexibility

          7  to set specific fines. We at the Department of

          8  Sanitation, we will communicate that to

          9  Environmental Control Board, and that's how the $100

         10  minimum fine has been imposed against people who

         11  violate the littering provisions.

         12                 The date that this occurred, we don't

         13  know for certain, it was one of our prior

         14  commissioners. We can't exactly tell you the date

         15  that that was done, but it has been done at least

         16  over the past ten years or so, at least over ten

         17  years.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: What I'm just

         19  expressing to you as the Chief, and you can

         20  communicate that to your Commissioner, that as a

         21  Council member representing 163,000 people that I

         22  have a problem with a minimum fine of $100, and even

         23  though the law does not say that the minimum is 100,

         24  from a practical point of view it's $100; would you

         25  agree with that?
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          2                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: If you

          4  disagree with that, then I wanted to understand your

          5  logic. So, I'm glad you said that from a practical

          6  point of view, you agree with that.

          7                 So, Council Member, Chair of the

          8  Sanitation Committee, I have a concern that I'm

          9  expressing on behalf of my constituents of a minimum

         10  penalty, the first offense of littering of $100. If

         11  we're talking about that part of this legislation is

         12  to increase the fines, especially for repeat

         13  offenders, and I would tend to agree with that

         14  wholeheartedly. And knowing that this legislation,

         15  if passed and signed into law, would also hopefully,

         16  you know, communicate to people that it's not in

         17  their best interest to litter because they're going

         18  to be fined, and also that the City as a result of

         19  that will be a cleaner place to live, and also as a

         20  result of that, that there will be certain benefits,

         21  as far as income coming into the City.

         22                 But to say that the minimum practical

         23  fine is $100, then why don't we just set the minimum

         24  fine at $100? Why play games here? Why don't we just

         25  set the minimum fine at $100?
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          2                 I won't agree with that, I say to you

          3  right now, so that's my concern, and I would prefer

          4  as a Council Member representing my people, that a

          5  first offense, which should be $50, because what

          6  you're doing is you're sending a message. Yes,

          7  they're going to pay for offending the law, for

          8  violating the law, but it's not going to be so heavy

          9  where they may not be able to afford it. I'm saying

         10  to you that the constituents I represent, the

         11  average family income is under $35,000, and from a

         12  practical point of view, $100 is just too stiff.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Well, your

         14  comments are duly noted and your sentiments are duly

         15  noted, Council Member Jackson, and I think you're

         16  clear that we are not dealing with that portion of

         17  the law today that sets the minimum fine. We are not

         18  doing that, that remains at 50 to $250. The issue

         19  that the amounts that the Environmental Control

         20  Board assesses for each fine, it's something that

         21  we've learned about through this process and that's

         22  something that we will look at how they come to that

         23  decision, and we will take a look at that.

         24                 I will say, though, that it is true

         25  that $100 is a lot of money, but if you think now in
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          2  the rest of the City similar violations, whether

          3  it's a parking ticket, you know, sort of quality of

          4  life violations aren't all in that range of roughly

          5  $100, so it seems to be the number that most of

          6  these bills has come to for this type of conduct.

          7                 Also, if someone receives a ticket

          8  for littering, the enforcement agent will check off

          9  the $100 as a matter of cost; however, someone who

         10  receives that ticket can go to the Environmental

         11  Control Board and make the case either not being

         12  guilty or for a lesser fine. So that is a

         13  possibility as well. But we certainly look at that

         14  issue as we go forward, but I want to make sure you

         15  understand that we are not voting on that setting of

         16  the minimum. 70-A only goes to repeat offenders, not

         17  to the initial offense. But I understand your point

         18  that if it says 50 it should be 15, if it should be

         19  100, then we should vote on that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And not to,

         21  but I just wanted to respond to what you're saying,

         22  based on what the representative in the Sanitation

         23  Department, the Commissioner determines the fine and

         24  communicates that to the Environmental Control

         25  Board, and Environmental Control Board doesn't have
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          2  the flexibility of setting the fine. That's what she

          3  communicated, just five minutes earlier.

          4                 MS. CICCONE: Yes, that is correct,

          5  Council Member McMahon.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But I think that

          7  that is the fine, but you're saying that the

          8  Environmental Control Board judge does not have the

          9  flexibility to increase or decrease the fine?

         10                 MS. CICCONE: In terms of imposing a

         11  minimum fine, we do communicate to the Environmental

         12  Control Board based on the Sanitation Commissioner's

         13  discretion, what he or she believes should be a

         14  minimum fine for violation of a specific offense

         15  under the Administrative Code.

         16                 So, therefore, as the Environmental

         17  Control Board, they don't have the flexibility to

         18  lower that minimum imposed fine that the agent will

         19  indicate on the actual NOV.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And that's a

         21  hundred dollars, Mike.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Which is

         23  $100, okay.

         24                 MS. CICCONE: And in the case of

         25  littering, yes, it's 100.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay, that's

          3  something that we will look into at a further

          4  hearing.

          5                 I'm not so sure if that's correct.

          6                 MS. CICCONE: I'd also like to add

          7  that the fines that are actually imposed and

          8  communicated to the Environmental Control Board,

          9  they are approved by the Environmental Control

         10  Board, and the ECB is comprised of agency

         11  representatives and citizen members.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay, we'll look

         13  into that further. You raise great points, Council

         14  Member Jackson. But, again, to be clear that we are

         15  not addressing that particular issue here today, and

         16  the issue of what the minimum fine should be is

         17  certainly something that should be part of a greater

         18  discussion. Some may say it should be $150 a fine,

         19  as anti-littering; on the other hand, it's an awful

         20  lot of money, I understand that.

         21                 Council Member Felder.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you,

         23  Chair McMahon. I have a number of questions, please.

         24                 Can you define the first offense. I

         25  understand -- let's say Simcha Felder goes out,
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          2  walks down the street, throws a tissue on the

          3  sidewalk, on January 1st, that's the first offense,

          4  right?

          5                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: Issued a summons

          6  for that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes, 10:00 in

          8  the morning. And I'm so happy about my first ticket

          9  that I walk a block further and throw another tissue

         10  out, right afterward. Is that a second offense?

         11                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: It might be a

         12  second summons.

         13                 As I understand correctly, the second

         14  offense is when the first offense has already been

         15  adjudicated and that person has been found guilty or

         16  in default of payment.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Well, I want

         18  to understand this clearly, and it's very important

         19  to me, because I want to know how many tissues I can

         20  throw on the sidewalk in one day, and whether that's

         21  the first offense or not.

         22                 MS. CICCONE: Councilman Felder, I'd

         23  like to introduce one of our attorneys for the

         24  Department, Madeline Ligiori, who also serves on the

         25  Environmental Control Board.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: That's

          3  wonderful.

          4                 MS. CICCONE: And a Sanitation

          5  representative, and she'll explain to you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Great.

          7                 MS. LIGIORI: Council Member Felder,

          8  in order to be a repeat violator, you have to be

          9  found guilty in the Environmental Control Board.

         10                 If you receive a ticket on Monday and

         11  you receive another ticket on Wednesday, you'll

         12  still be considered a first-time offender.

         13                 You will only be considered a

         14  repeater violator if you were found guilty of that

         15  Monday violation when we issued the ticket for the

         16  Wednesday violation, which theoretically is not

         17  going to happen.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay.

         19                 So that means that, and I don't throw

         20  tissues on the sidewalk.

         21                 MS. LIGIORI: Of course not.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: My mother

         23  pinched me in my backside when I was about eight

         24  years old, and I still feel it, her doing it. But

         25  it's clear, you're saying if somebody goes ahead and
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          2  throws one tissue on the sidewalk and then goes, you

          3  know, gets ticketed, and walks down the block and

          4  throws 700 other tissues on the sidewalk, because

          5  they're upset, they would still be subject to that

          6  $100 fine. And they're not going to be subject for

          7  separate fines for each tissue; is that true?

          8                 MS. LIGIORI: Not for each specific

          9  tissue, each piece of paper you throw. It's the act

         10  of littering.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I understand.

         12  But if the officer follows me down the street, he

         13  can't keep issuing tickets for me that day; is that

         14  true or not?

         15                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: If you throw out a

         16  tissue and I give you a summons, then you walk three

         17  more steps or so and you throw out another, that's

         18  another incidence.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: That's what

         20  I'm asking.

         21                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: It would be $100.

         22  We wouldn't increase it at that point.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: But in other

         24  words, you could give me $5,000 worth of tickets,

         25  even if it was the same day; is that true?
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          2                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: If you empty that

          3  many boxes of tissues at different instances, yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes, I walk

          5  around with a lot of boxes of tissues. But what you

          6  said, it's not really accurate, because your

          7  colleague is saying that I can get $10,000 worth of

          8  tickets in one day, if I keep on throwing tissues

          9  out; is that true or not?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But each one

         11  would be a first-time offense.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I understand.

         13  What I want to know is that the first time offense

         14  is defined by the act of doing what you're doing,

         15  which is littering; is that true or not?

         16                 MR. MOSS: (Not identified for the

         17  record.) Based on the constitutional cases that come

         18  from the criminal law line of cases, technically

         19  when you're given a summons there's a presumption of

         20  innocence.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes.

         22                 MR. MOSS: So you cannot be given a

         23  ticket as a second offender until you're actually

         24  convicted, because you may be not guilty of those

         25  offenses.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right.

          3                 MR. MOSS: So, if you were followed

          4  down the street, and as you dropped each ticket you

          5  were given a summons, there would be all first

          6  violator summonses. You could only get a summons as

          7  a second violator once you've been in some kind of

          8  tribunal and you've been convicted of that very same

          9  type of incident.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right.

         11                 MR. MOSS: So, on Tuesday, if they

         12  convicted you of those 100 tissues, and then

         13  Wednesday you went out and threw a tissue, then you

         14  could be a second violator.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes, I'm not

         16  interested at this point about the second violator.

         17  I want to know, the first offense doesn't mean that

         18  you can't be ticketed more than $100. It means that

         19  you can be ticketed $5,000, as long as you keep on

         20  doing it over and over again.

         21                 MR. MOSS: Exactly.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: True?

         23                 MR. MOSS: True.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you for

         25  clarifying that.
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          2                 Now, to move on with that, with the

          3  postings, all right? Somebody goes out and posts

          4  something on one pole and then posts something on

          5  two poles, on three poles, four poles, a thousand

          6  poles, every pole in Bensonhurst or Midwood is full

          7  of some kind of posting; it would be the same that

          8  each one of those is considered a first offense, but

          9  you would ticket them $10,000, if that's what it

         10  was. I have a problem with that.

         11                 I have a problem with that, and I'll

         12  tell you why: because I think even though the

         13  majority of the postings that take place are done by

         14  some business that's in the business of postings,

         15  most of them, but there are some organizations,

         16  non-profit organizations, as well, that do postings,

         17  especially in neighborhoods where they don't watch

         18  television, and such as some parts of my district

         19  and don't listen to the radio, don't read the

         20  newspapers, this is how they get their information.

         21  Now, if somebody innocently, hypothetically, if

         22  somebody innocently didn't know the law, goes ahead

         23  and posts 1,000 posters the first time, that means

         24  that they're going to be fined as a first offense,

         25  but they'll be fined 1,000 times. To me, it would

                                                            34

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  seem more logical that a first offense means that

          3  they would ticket it -- they found out that this is

          4  something that they're not allowed to do and not

          5  everyone around knows that you're not allowed to

          6  post. People know that you're not allowed to litter,

          7  I think, or I hope, but posting is not something

          8  that all people know about. So, therefore, I would

          9  hope that the first offense means they go ahead, do

         10  it January 1st, even if they post 1,000 posters

         11  January 1st, that should all be considered one

         12  offense. You let them know, you issue them a ticket

         13  stating that what you did is not right under the

         14  law, and then after that, if they go January 2nd,

         15  after you issued them an offense, then that would to

         16  me be a second offense. Taking somebody who doesn't

         17  know what they're doing and giving them 1,000

         18  tickets and considering that first offense, and

         19  that's $5,000 worth of tickets, I think is

         20  unacceptable. And just to make it a little bit more

         21  complicated, a police officer fines somebody who

         22  goes through a stop sign, everybody who drives

         23  should know that a stop sign, you have to stop at a

         24  stop sign, so if the police officer gives somebody a

         25  ticket to go through one stop sign, and then
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          2  somebody is upset, just to show, the officer goes

          3  through 20 more stop signs, that to me is not a

          4  question that it should all be one offense, because

          5  it's the same day. Everybody knows that you're

          6  supposed to stop at a stop sign. If somebody

          7  doesn't, they should be driving.

          8                 But this is not the same. To me,

          9  somebody posting -- I have kids in the neighborhood,

         10  in my neighborhood and I don't know what the law is

         11  there. I'm afraid to ask, but I have kids in the

         12  neighborhood that they hang up postings about some

         13  kind of bazaar that they're having in their

         14  backyard; by the way, are they punishable by law?

         15  How old do you have to be?

         16                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: Well, I know we'd

         17  use discretion in that case.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I appreciate

         19  it, but I want to know what the law is. I want to

         20  know what the law is. If somebody is ten years old

         21  and he hangs up 16 or 100 little flyers saying he's

         22  having a sale on Sunday or they're having a bazaar,

         23  what's the law?

         24                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: Well, as far as I

         25  know, the law applies to everybody.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right.

          3                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: But in this case,

          4  if we knew that there was a 16-year-old, which I

          5  don't know how we'd know that --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right.

          7                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: I'm sure we'd use

          8  some discretion on it. If there's a missing persons

          9  flyer out there we're going to use discretion on it.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Good. I

         11  appreciate that.

         12                 So, now we're going back to Simcha

         13  Felder, okay? He's an idiot. He goes ahead, he

         14  doesn't know anything about the posting law. Those

         15  were two statements, "he's an idiot," and "he

         16  doesn't know anything about the poster law," and he

         17  goes ahead and he hangs up 1,000 posters in one day.

         18  You go ahead, you issue him 1,000 violations for a

         19  first offense, that doesn't make sense to me. That

         20  does not make sense to me whatsoever.

         21                 A first offense should be, and this

         22  is not something that everybody knows about. To make

         23  the presumption that everybody in the City knows

         24  you're not allowed to post on poles is just not so,

         25  and the proof to that is I'd like to take you
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          2  through a number of neighborhoods throughout the

          3  City where people do it routinely.

          4                 And, again, I'm not talking about the

          5  people who are in the business of doing it, because

          6  there are people that do it over and over and over

          7  again. But there are people that walk down the

          8  street, see their flyers up, say what's the big

          9  deal, I'm having a sale or something else, and hang

         10  up 100 posters and they're suddenly faced with

         11  $5,000 of fines. I don't find that acceptable. I

         12  don't understand that.

         13                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: Well, everybody is

         14  liable, and each poster is a potential litter

         15  condition, and that's what we're trying to do,

         16  improve the quality of life. So, we have to address

         17  each poster as a potential for a reduction in the

         18  quality of life. I don't see any other way we can do

         19  this. It's very difficult for us to determine how

         20  old somebody is, or how many posters we should allow

         21  based on certain circumstances of why they're doing

         22  the postering, so we have to apply it evenly and

         23  whenever possible, hopefully we use the proper

         24  discretion to eliminate some of the inconvenience to

         25  the public, but in general if there's posters up
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          2  there we have to move forward and issue the

          3  summonses.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Look, I like

          5  you so much that I'm going to solve the problem for

          6  you. See, I don't like asking questions and leaving

          7  you with the junk. I'm going to take care of the

          8  problem for you.

          9                 The solution is what I just

         10  suggested, that when you go ahead, your Department

         11  or your agents and issue a ticket, a summons, you

         12  know, for a postering offense, on January 1st,

         13  anything that day should be considered the first

         14  offense and it should be subject to one fine, $50 or

         15  whatever it is that you say, not $5,000 for 500

         16  posters to the same person.

         17                 Now, if you go ahead, I don't have a

         18  problem, for example, if under the law the following

         19  year it's the same thing, right? The same guy that

         20  has an event or sale twice every year, so January

         21  1st, he goes and smacks up a poster and under

         22  Simcha's new law this is a first offense, he says

         23  this is a great law. All I need it is once a year,

         24  and then next year under the law I don't have a

         25  problem saying first offense means the first time
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          2  that somebody violated the law, he should have been

          3  issued one summons and thereafter that would be a

          4  second offense.

          5                 So, therefore, somebody who doesn't

          6  is not familiar with the law, doesn't get smacked

          7  with $5,000 worth of fines.

          8                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: But I don't think

          9  that becomes a deterrent. If you're going to get hit

         10  $100 for posting 5,000 signs, which may bring in $5

         11  million of revenue from whatever you're doing, and

         12  at the same time cause us to have litter conditions

         13  and reductions in ScoreCard and reductions in

         14  quality of life in the neighborhood, then I think

         15  the deterrent is by issuing a summons for each and

         16  every poster. It's just like the person who went

         17  from block to block as you were throwing those

         18  tissues out. What would be the sense of issuing one

         19  summons for $100 and then the guy puts out 5,000

         20  tissues throughout the neighborhood. It all pertains

         21  to the quality of life, and to be a deterrent it has

         22  to impact them.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: You just

         24  reinforced why I said what I said was good. You

         25  didn't mean to, but you're working with me.
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          2                 Let me explain why. Because if you

          3  went ahead and said to me that an officer followed

          4  this guy who posted around, he goes ahead, puts up a

          5  poster, and says this is against the law, here's a

          6  summons. He goes to the next spot, puts up another

          7  poster. I agree with you, that's not the case. The

          8  analogy wasn't good.

          9                 In my case he goes ahead, the

         10  equivalent would be somebody who went ahead, threw

         11  out 1,000 tissues, right? And somebody goes ahead,

         12  he does it once, right? And you're giving him a

         13  ticket for 1,000 tissues without even seeing or

         14  knowing that he did it, right? You can't do that,

         15  true?

         16                 Can you do it?

         17                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: We're not going to

         18  follow the person and give out --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I understand.

         20  So that means that if somebody did what we said was

         21  being done in the postering, then that would not

         22  happen. What I'm saying to you is, you go ahead and

         23  you make a presumption, and I understand why,

         24  because or else there would be no way for you to

         25  find them, that whoever is listed on the poster is
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          2  the one responsible. Unless they can prove that they

          3  have nothing to do with it or they can prove who did

          4  it. And I understand that. But the issue to me is

          5  that the deterrent should be that the first-time

          6  offender, let's say again, Simcha Felder, you have

          7  on record that I was issued a $50, $100 fine for

          8  first offense, if at any point in my life I'm issued

          9  another ticket, that's not the first offense any

         10  more and then you do whatever I want. You know, you

         11  do whatever you want. If I do 500, 5,000 posters, I

         12  get ticketed for each one, but I don't think it's

         13  fair that on the first shot with postering, unless

         14  you were, and you can't, issuing the ticket to the

         15  people that are postering it, that are actually

         16  postering, they're the ones, many of whom know that

         17  it's illegal because they make money off postering,

         18  but some people are postering and they have no idea

         19  about the postering law at all, and you're issuing

         20  them $5,000 worth of summons for the first offense.

         21  I don't accept that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Go ahead.

         23                 MS. CICCONE: Councilman McMahon, I'd

         24  also like to point out, too, when the law was

         25  revised back in December of 1993, which took effect
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          2  January 1st of 1994, and that was the amendment to

          3  create the rebuttable presumption, and that

          4  Councilman Felder had just noted, we at the

          5  Department of Sanitation had the authority to begin

          6  enforcement as of January 1st, 1004, however, we

          7  took the position that we wanted to do a little bit

          8  of public education, and therefore we sent notices

          9  to every community board manager, to every elected

         10  official, state and local elected official, we tried

         11  to put out as much notice as possible that there was

         12  going to be a 90-day lead-in time prior to beginning

         13  enforcement on April 1st, 1994, so we did attempt to

         14  provide as much advance warning as possible before

         15  we actually began to issue tickets.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And let me just

         17  add to that, I'll point out that this legislation

         18  regarding the posters, is not a bill that was put

         19  forward by the Department, it was put forward by the

         20  Council.

         21                 Regarding the individual violation

         22  for each poster is really just a codification of the

         23  case law that the courts have determined in the

         24  state already, and this is a codification of that.

         25  It's something that I firmly believe in.  Because in
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          2  my ten months in this position, no one from any

          3  neighborhood has come to us and complained about a

          4  child who is putting up five or 20 or 30 posters for

          5  a cake sale or for a lost cat. The Department wisely

          6  uses discretion in that area.

          7                 The problem is that if you take, for

          8  instance, a record company that's promoting a new

          9  record in the City, there are advertising costs. The

         10  same is true of many of the entities that the

         11  Department goes after. If you say to them it's only

         12  $100 fine and they can put up 5,000 posters in a

         13  day, then that would be some money-making business,

         14  and I think that we really have to look at who we're

         15  going after here. And, so, this is not a bill to go

         16  after the small individual, but certainly one to go

         17  after those who are violating the law.

         18                 And I also want to say, for me

         19  personally, the excuse that I'm ignorant of the law

         20  and therefore I don't have to follow it, is one that

         21  we really have to be careful of, because I'm sure

         22  that you can find an 18-year-old graffiti artist out

         23  there doing graffiti all across the City who could

         24  say, well, I didn't know it was illegal to do

         25  graffiti, and I don't see any difference between
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          2  illegal posters and graffiti or other quality of

          3  life crimes, and that's why we push forward on this

          4  bill.

          5                 It's certainly one, I don't think the

          6  Department would go out of control and use this

          7  against any individual, however, the main focus here

          8  is to go after those who are abusing the fact -- but

          9  just like in terms of littering, you know, the

         10  reason we have this repeat offending violations and

         11  the reason we're going after that, I bet there are

         12  some entities that would say, well, I'll just pay a

         13  $50 or $100 fine, I don't care, it cost me less to

         14  keep paying the fine than to comply with the law,

         15  and that's really the group that we're going after

         16  here with these two bills.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I appreciate

         18  your comments, Chairman McMahon. Although, I

         19  disagree with you.

         20                 And my question towards the

         21  Department, I love the Sanitation Department, I love

         22  you more, but this wasn't an attack on the

         23  Department, and it's not an attack on how things get

         24  done. I think communities in general, different

         25  communities are unique in how information gets
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          2  disseminated throughout the community, whether it's

          3  good, whether it's bad, some people like it, in my

          4  own district, for example, postering in Bensonhurst,

          5  if they caught somebody postering in Bensonhurst, I

          6  don't want to think about it, and that's fine. Or in

          7  Bayridge, which is not my district. There are other

          8  parts of the neighborhood, I'm not going to say that

          9  they love the postering but that's how they get

         10  their communication, that's a fact, and the City

         11  can't create laws for separate communities, and I

         12  understand that as well.

         13                 But at the same time, I think that

         14  the Department, Sanitation Department, if on the

         15  whole this issue of the discretion really was being

         16  used, I think I would have less of a problem with

         17  it, but the issuing of summonses to homeowners, and

         18  I know that has nothing to do with this bill, but

         19  I'm saying that the issuing, I have -- my mother got

         20  three summonses, she owns a corner house, three

         21  summonses I think on three separate days in the same

         22  week for litter in front of the house, and I'm

         23  recommending as we're here, is that I think that

         24  commercial strips, there are only certain hours of

         25  the day that you're responsible to make sure that
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          2  it's clean, and I don't think that applies to

          3  homeowners. For my mother to have to stand outside

          4  all day long to make sure that on a commercial strip

          5  nothing comes in front of her house, I think is

          6  absurd.

          7                 So, I think some of the discretion,

          8  even though the Department talks about discretion, I

          9  think that some people that work for the Department

         10  aren't using the discretion that has been spoken

         11  about, and I still have a problem. I don't know what

         12  the solution. I thought I had a solution.

         13                 But I understood what you said, I

         14  don't know what the solution is.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: First, the

         16  comments you make are very well taken, Councilman,

         17  and that's why in the littering bill we only went

         18  after the act of littering, not the property owner,

         19  which was the original focus as well, and we took

         20  that out because we heard what you said at the last

         21  hearing and what the people who testified, the store

         22  owners, et cetera.

         23                 We are also looking at two pieces of

         24  legislation that will deal with the issues of

         25  routing and trying to exempt residential property,
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          2  trying to deal with residential properties that may

          3  abut a bus stop or may abut a commercial area, we

          4  are working on those, as well.

          5                 Regarding the issue of postering,

          6  maybe we should look in places like in Paris where

          7  they put up round cylinders to allow for illegal

          8  postering to take place, and maybe we should make

          9  that part of the Mayor's street furniture program,

         10  and I'm not kidding when I say that, because I

         11  understand it's a way to disseminate information.

         12                 But certainly there are those who

         13  abuse it and those are the people that we're going

         14  after today.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I agree with

         16  you on that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I'll take it.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: But one other

         19  question.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Go ahead.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: And I'm sure

         22  you're not going to schedule hearings on Friday

         23  anymore.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: You already have

         25  my word.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'm just

          3  kidding.

          4                 This issue came up at your hearing, I

          5  think the previous hearing. The total revenue that

          6  comes into the City from issuing tickets to

          7  litterers, you know, is so small, I mean it should

          8  be a lot larger. I think that the people, the

          9  manpower that you're sending out issuing tickets for

         10  the postering, we should use some of those people to

         11  ticket people who are littering, who are actually

         12  littering. The revenue, I mean the Council's

         13  Division gave us from the Finance Division the

         14  revenue to look at the numbers, it's mindboggling.

         15                 I know it's hard to find somebody

         16  throw out a tissue out of a pocket, and it's easier

         17  to find some posters on a pole, but I am all in

         18  favor of sending out thousands of agents and

         19  ticketing people for throwing garbage on the street.

         20  So, maybe there is some way that we can increase the

         21  revenues there, even though it's more difficult.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And that's what

         23  we're trying to get them to do by making the act of

         24  littering worthwhile to go out and go after. That's

         25  certainly the focus here. But at the same time we
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          2  have Council Member Jackson's comments as well, but

          3  if we can somehow go after the repeat offenders and

          4  stop the litterers, we are trying to do that. That's

          5  certainly the focus. And not stick it on homeowners

          6  who have the wind blow the litter on their property.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: So, since

          8  you're the Chairman of this Committee, I'm asking

          9  you, as the Council member who has the problem, how

         10  am I supposed to vote? I mean, you're not allowed to

         11  tell me how am I supposed to vote, but what would

         12  you do, if you felt the way I felt and it came to

         13  voting for such a bill?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I think that the

         15  ultimate goals here of trying to make the quality of

         16  life in the City of New York better, and knowing

         17  that the Chairman will be watching the Department as

         18  they enforce this law and being mindful that

         19  discretion is a better part of valor, I think that I

         20  would probably vote for the law, knowing that in the

         21  long term it will go to making the City a better

         22  place, and also knowing that if there are complaints

         23  in your neighborhood about the young children

         24  getting fined, that that's an issue that we would

         25  take up immediately with the Commissioner, and I
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          2  think we would be able to solve. But I assure you

          3  that the bigger problem we're trying to address of

          4  large conglomerates using this method to keep down

          5  their advertising costs and to get messages out and

          6  willingly paying fines because it doesn't cost them

          7  anything, is a serious problem that we have in the

          8  City.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: And what about

         10  the non-profits?

         11                 I'm not talking about somebody who

         12  creates a non-profit company and distributes -- what

         13  did you say Bid Daddy WaWa or something like that?

         14  I'm talking about some school or something else like

         15  that, that gets $5,000 worth of tickets. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Well, I would

         17  certainly work with them with the Commission to

         18  resolve that and see that those tickets are not

         19  adjudicated.

         20                 Again, though, I think we have to get

         21  the word out to everyone that this is not legal,

         22  it's illegal behavior.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I agree.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: It's to the

         25  detriment of the whole City, because those flyers go
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          2  up, they end up in the litter stream, or the

          3  Department has to send out a crew to clean them off.

          4  It's costing the City a lot of money, and when we

          5  can't afford it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay.

          7                 You just want me to be quiet, and I

          8  want to be a good member.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'm shutting

         11  up.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you.

         13                 Any other questions?

         14                 Okay, Chief, thank you very much. And

         15  thank you to your staff, and thank you for the

         16  Commissioner of having you come over. Thank you.

         17                 CHIEF ETERGINEOSO: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: We look forward

         19  to working with you on this and other enforcement

         20  and larger issues. Thank you.

         21                 Okay, we have one witness. Constance

         22  Lesold, from the Eastern Parkway Coalition.

         23                 MS. LESOLD: My name is Constance

         24  Lesold, and I originally came down here expecting a

         25  fire committee hearing, but when I saw that this
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          2  issue was on for today, and I know how important it

          3  is to some of the small independent business people

          4  who had testified earlier to your Committee, I took

          5  a couple of copies of this one for my friend and one

          6  for myself and decided to stay, and I'm very glad

          7  that I did.

          8                 Let me say, first and foremost, that

          9  although I have torn down posters without being

         10  paid, I have called and aggravated people who put

         11  posters up myself without be paid, because of my

         12  position on the community board in the past is

         13  Chairman of the Parks Committee, you know I am very

         14  concerned over the welfare of trees, et cetera, et

         15  cetera. Despite all of that, I am not happy with

         16  this bill for the same reasons that Mr. Felder, Mr.

         17  Jackson have brought up, but I also want to make it

         18  clear that as much as I hate littering and mess and

         19  all this other stuff, my quality of life is much

         20  more affected by picking up the newspaper and seeing

         21  eight fire companies perhaps being cut, and, you

         22  know, I almost think it's irrelevant what we're

         23  talking about, because if you cut eight fire

         24  companies, you're going to have so much trash from

         25  so many fires, especially if you cut them in all
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          2  black and Puerto Rican neighborhoods in Brooklyn.

          3                 I mean, did you read where they plan

          4  to cut them? 212 in Cobble Hill, Greenpoint 278,

          5  Sunset 209, Sunset Park, Bed Stuy, I mean those are

          6  black and Hispanic neighborhoods, folks. And in East

          7  Harlem, in Manhattan. I mean, what is this about? Is

          8  there the hope in the City that we will have a riot

          9  and burn down these neighborhoods.  When things like

         10  this are in the paper, that affects my quality of

         11  life.

         12                 Or is it that we hope that the eight

         13  fire companies cut will bring back the plan

         14  shrinkage that the New York Times brought us in the

         15  past. You know, at any rate, it looks really bad to

         16  somebody who served for years with Annamarie Blinn

         17  on the Fire Committee and worked with Rod and Debbie

         18  Wallace and watched Bushwick almost burn to the

         19  ground, and watched -- I can't tell you how angry

         20  and how my -- I mean, my question is today, do I go

         21  out and have 300 16-year-olds, because I'm capable

         22  of it, putting up notices all over the neighborhood,

         23  on everything except trees, about the cuts in the

         24  Fire Department?

         25                 I mean, what are you supposed to do
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          2  in poor neighborhoods? It's for sure that posters do

          3  get out the word in poor neighborhoods. People don't

          4  have e-mail.

          5                 And what about small political

          6  parties? Now, I mean, you know, what about freedom

          7  of speech? When we can't get any kind of decent, I

          8  can't even remember what you call the bill so that

          9  millionaires can't spend all of their own money, and

         10  billionaires can't spend all of their own money to

         11  get elected? The pollution on TV is so bad that I

         12  heard on the radio this morning that the idea is

         13  that people didn't go out and vote because they got

         14  so sick and tired of the pollution and littering of

         15  nasty political ads.

         16                 So, you know, meanwhile small parties

         17  that put up ads right before the election and

         18  hopefully take them down right afterwards, they

         19  ought to get fined millions of dollars, because they

         20  are not millionaires. And how much money are you

         21  going to have to pay out for the Corporation Counsel

         22  to go to court when these things become

         23  constitutional issues?

         24                 I mean, we already spend enough money

         25  defending the way we've created a City where the
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          2  rich get richer and the poor get poorer. I mean, Mr.

          3  Jackson and school bills, the children only need an

          4  eighth grade education? Well, I sure can't help them

          5  learn to read and write and type and go out and put

          6  those ads all over everything in town and go to jail

          7  for it, if necessary. But I am sick and tired of

          8  hearing about my quality of life in terms of

          9  littering. And I will tell you what, you all may end

         10  up in a new form of "Alice's Restaurant" and be

         11  laughed at for the next hundred years. That's a song

         12  not going out of day. So, thank you for your

         13  patience.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you, Ms.

         15  Lesold.

         16                 At this point we will call the vote.

         17  The Chairman recommends a yes vote on both bills.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Yes on both.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I abstain.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Serrano.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: Yes on both.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'm sorry, I'm

         25  voting yes on the littering.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Yassky.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Aye on both.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of five in

          7  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

          8  abstentions, both items are adopted, with the

          9  exception of Intro. 146-A, which was adopted by a

         10  vote of four in the affirmative, zero in the

         11  negative and one abstention.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And I would like

         13  the clerk to leave the record open.

         14                 Okay, thank you very much. I hereby

         15  close the meeting.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 11:45 a.m.)
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